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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

Such products include bridges, caps, crowns, inlays, onlays and prostheses.  

Plaintiff Glidewell has been providing such dental products for about forty 

(40) years and has become one of the most successful and well-known 

restorative dental product providers in the United States.  Plaintiff Glidewell is 

seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief with respect to the claims 

presented in this Complaint. 

 2. Defendant Keating Dental Arts, Inc. (Defendant Keating) is a 

California corporation having its principal place of business at 16881 Hale 

Avenue, Irvine, California 92606.  Defendant Keating also provides dental 

restorative products primarily to dentists and is a direct competitor of Plaintiff 

Glidewell by offering essentially the same products to essentially the same 

purchasers in the same market place.  In addition, both Plaintiff Glidewell and 

Defendant Keating advertise in dental industry publications and present their 

respective products at dental industry trade shows. 

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this Action 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. '1331 and 1338(a) as it arises under Acts of Congress 

related to trademarks.  Additionally, the Court has subject matter jurisdiction 

over the federal trademark infringement claim pursuant to 15 U.S.C. '1121. 

 4. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant Keating as it 

is a resident of this judicial district and does business in this district including 

the acts of trademark infringement alleged herein. 

 5. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. '1391(b) in that 

Defendant Keating has its principal offices and has committed acts of 

infringement in this District. 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

 

 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

 6. Plaintiff Glidewell has been selling dental bridges, dental caps, 

dental crowns, dental inlays, dental onlays and dental prostheses under the 

trademark BRUXZIR® in interstate commerce since at least June 2009.  

Plaintiff Glidewell obtained U.S. Federal Trademark Registration of its mark 

BRUXZIR® under Registration No. 3,739,663 on the Principal Register on 

January 19, 2010 based on its application filed on June 12, 2009.  A true and 

correct copy of its Registration No. 3,739,663 is attached to this Complaint as 

Exhibit A. 

 7. Since June 2009 Plaintiff Glidewell’s use of its trademark 

BRUXZIR® has been continuous and without any periods of non-use.  

Plaintiff Glidewell has since June, 2009 amassed sales of BRUXZIR® dental 

restorative products in amounts of tens of millions of dollars throughout the 

United States and in numerous foreign countries. 

 8. In November 2009 Plaintiff Glidewell began selling dental 

ceramics in block form under the BRUXZIR® trademark.  Such products are 

sold in pre-sintered condition, that is, they are sufficiently soft to be 

machinable by the customer and then hardened by final sintering after being 

milled or otherwise shaped into a dental restoration that is especially adapted 

to a particular patient’s dental requirements.  Since November 2009 Plaintiff 

Glidewell has been continuously selling such dental ceramics under the 

BRUXZIR® trademark in addition to the dental restorative products sold under 

the BRUXZIR® trademark since June 2009.  Additional millions of dollars in 

sales of dental ceramics have contributed further to the extremely positive 

reputation of Plaintiff Glidewell’s BRUXZIR® products in the dental industry. 

Case 8:11-cv-01309-DOC -AN   Document 1    Filed 08/30/11   Page 3 of 18   Page ID #:7



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 - 4 - 
 

Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

 9. Defendant Keating has begun offering for sale dental restorative 

products under the trademark KDZ BRUXER.  An advertisement that has 

already been published in ADA News (American Dental Association News) 

announcing Defendant Keating’s introduction of dental prosthetic products 

under the KDZ BRUXER trademark is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Upon 

information and belief, Defendant Keating has made sales of such dental 

prosthetic products being advertised under their trademark.  The extent of such 

sales by Defendant Keating is not currently known to Plaintiff Glidewell and 

will be ascertained during this Action. 

 10. Upon information and belief, Defendant Keating has intentionally 

begun using the trademark “KDZ BRUXER” on virtually the same products 

being offered and sold to virtually the same market for the express purpose of 

creating a likelihood of public confusion and/or an initial interest confusion 

between Plaintiff Glidewell’s BRUXZIR® dental products and Defendant 

Keating’s KDZ BRUXER dental products.  Moreover, upon information and 

belief, Defendant Keating’s actions in regard to its trademark KDZ BRUXER 

are intended to dilute and diminish the value of Plaintiff’s Glidewell’s 

successful trademark BRUXZIR®, to the unfair benefit of Defendant Keating’s 

directly competing products. 

 11. In May 2011 Plaintiff Glidewell learned that Defendant Keating 

had filed an “intent-to-use” application with the U.S. Trademark Office to 

register the trademark KDZ BRUXER and design alleging that it intended to 

use that trademark on dental prosthetic products.  Responsive thereto, Plaintiff 

Glidewell had its attorney send a letter dated May 31, 2011 to Defendant 

Keating’s attorney of record.  A copy of that letter is attached to this 

Complaint as Exhibit C.  The letter expressly warns Defendant Keating 

through its attorney, that any actual use of that trademark on dental prostheses 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

would be regarded as creating a likelihood of public confusion for which 

Plaintiff Glidewell would file this Action. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION – INFRINGEMENT OF A 

FEDERALLY REGISTERED TRADEMARK 

 12. By this reference, Plaintiff Glidewell repeats and incorporates the 

allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 11 above. 

 13. Defendant Keating has used in commerce the term KDZ 

BRUXER as a trademark in connection with advertising of, sale of, or offer to 

sell competing dental prostheses.  Such use in relation to Plaintiff Glidewell’s 

use of the BRUXZIR® trademark will likely cause confusion or mistake, or 

will likely deceive the relative purchasing public as to Defendant Keating’s 

products being associating or identified with or being the same as those of 

Plaintiff Glidewell.  Defendant Keating’s advertising of its KDZ BRUXER 

trademark is intentionally designed to cause an initial confusion to attract the 

attention of dentist buyers who are previously aware of Plaintiff Glidewell’s 

well-known trademark. 

 14. Plaintiff Glidewell did not consent to or authorize Defendant 

Keating’s adoption or commercial use of the KDZ BRUXER trademark for 

dental prostheses or any other goods or services. 

 15. Defendant Keating therefore infringed Plaintiff Glidewell’s 

BRUXZIR® trademark in violation of Plaintiff Glidewell’s federal trademark 

rights under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. '1051 et seq., particularly 15 U.S.C. 

'1114(1). 

 16. Plaintiff Glidewell’s BRUXZIR® trademark is strong in light of 

its substantial marketing and promotion of that trademark for its dental 

restorative and prosthetic products, its substantial sales volume of products 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

sold by Plaintiff Glidewell under that trademark, its acclaim and public 

recognition. 

 17. Upon information and belief, Defendant Keating knew at all 

times relevant to this Action, of Plaintiff Glidewell’s prior adoption and prior 

widespread commercial use of the BRUXZIR® trademark in connection with 

Plaintiff Glidewell’s dental products including those specified in the federal 

registration of Plaintiff Glidewell stated above.  Defendant Keating’s 

infringement of the BRUXZIR® trademark is therefore willful, knowing and 

deliberate. 

 18. Plaintiff Glidewell has no control over the composition or quality 

of the goods sold under the confusingly similar trademark by Defendant 

Keating.  As a result, to the extent Defendant’s products are inferior to 

Plaintiff Glidewell’s products, Plaintiff Glidewell’s valuable goodwill, 

developed at great expense and effort by Plaintiff Glidewell, is being harmed 

by Defendant Keating’s unauthorized use of the confusingly similar 

trademark, and is at risk of further damage. 

 19. The goodwill of Plaintiff Glidewell’s dental products business 

under the BRUXZIR® trademark is of enormous value and Plaintiff Glidewell 

will suffer irreparable harm, diminution of reputation and pecuniary damages 

should Defendant Keating’s infringement be allowed to continue. 

 20. Defendant Keating’s infringement will continue unless enjoined. 

 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION - FALSE DESIGNATION OF 

ORIGIN UNDER SECTION 43(a) OF THE LANHAM ACT 

 21. Plaintiff Glidewell realleges and incorporates by reference 

paragraphs 1 through 20, as if set forth fully herein. 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

 22. Defendant Keating has used and is using the infringing trademark 

KDZ BRUXER in commerce in connection with the advertising, sale, and 

provision of dental prostheses in such a manner as to create a likelihood of 

confusion among prospective purchasers and to unfairly compete with 

Plaintiff Glidewell.  Defendant Keating’s use of the infringing trademark 

induces purchasers and others to believe, contrary to the fact, that the products 

sold by Defendant Keating are rendered, sponsored or otherwise approved by, 

or connected with Plaintiff Glidewell.  Defendant Keating’s acts have 

damaged, impaired and diluted that part of Plaintiff Glidewell’s goodwill 

symbolized by its trademark BRUXZIR® to Plaintiff Glidewell’s immediate 

and irreparable damage. 

 23. Defendant Keating’s unauthorized use of the infringing trademark 

in connection with the advertising, sale and provision of Defendant Keating’s 

dental products constitutes use of a false designation of origin and a false 

description within the meaning of Section 43(a) of the Trademark Act of 1946, 

15 U.S.C. '1125(a). 

 24. Defendant Keating’s acts of false designation of origin and false 

description have caused Plaintiff Glidewell irreparable injury, damage to its 

reputation and pecuniary damages.  Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendant 

Keating will continue the acts of false designation of origin and false 

description complained of herein to Plaintiff Glidewell’s immediate and 

irreparable damage. 

 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION – UNFAIR COMPETITION UNDER 

CALIFORNIA BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE '17200 et seq. 

 25. Plaintiff Glidewell realleges and incorporates by reference 

paragraphs 1 through 24, as if set forth fully herein. 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

 26. Defendant Keating’s activities, as described above, constitute 

unfair competition in violation of California Business & Professions Code 

'17200, et seq.  As alleged above, Defendant Keating has infringed and 

intends to continue infringing Plaintiff Glidewell’s trademark. 

 27. Defendant Keating’s activities are likely to confuse or mislead the 

public as to the origin of sponsorship of Defendant Keating’s goods. 

 28. Defendant Keating has attempted and is attempting to trade on 

the goodwill associated with Plaintiff Glidewell’s trademark. 

 29. Defendant Keating’s wrongful acts have proximately caused and 

will continue to cause Plaintiff substantial injury, including loss of profits, 

confusion of potential customers, damage to Plaintiff Glidewell’s goodwill 

and reputation, and diminution in the value of Plaintiff Glidewell’s trademark. 

 30. In doing the acts alleged, Defendant Keating acted with a 

malicious intent, and as such, Plaintiff Glidewell is entitled to exemplary and 

punitive damages. 

 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Glidewell demands judgment against 

Defendant Keating as follows: 

 A. For an order permanently enjoining Defendant Keating and its 

owners, officers, directors, agents, servants, attorneys and employees and all 

other persons acting in concert with them, from: 

  (1) committing any further acts of trademark infringement, 

including using the KDZ BRUXER name in connection with any dental 

products; 

  (2) using any term that is likely to be confused with the 

BRUXZIR® trademark asserted in this Complaint; 
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Complaint with Exhibits A-C 

  (3) representing directly or indirectly in any form or manner 

whatsoever that any product it offers for sale is associated with or approved by 

Plaintiff Glidewell when, in fact, it is not; and/or 

  (4) passing off or inducing or enabling others to sell or pass off 

any Keating product as a Glidewell product or as a product endorsed or 

approved by Plaintiff Glidewell. 

 B. For an order directing Defendant Keating to file with this Court 

and to serve on Plaintiff Glidewell within thirty (30) days after service on 

Defendant Keating of each injunction granted herein, or such extended period 

as the Court may direct, a report in writing, under oath, setting forth in detail 

the manner and form in which Defendant Keating has complied with the 

injunction and order of the Court; 

 C. For a judgment that Defendant Keating shall pay to Plaintiff 

Glidewell damages in an amount equal to all of the profits derived from the 

infringement of Plaintiff Glidewell’s trademark together with an amount that 

Plaintiff Glidewell has been damaged as a result of such infringement; 

 D. For a judgment that Defendant Keating willfully and deliberately 

infringed Plaintiff Glidewell’s rights and that this is an exceptional case 

entitling Plaintiff Glidewell to enhanced damages under the Trademark Laws 

of the United States; 

 E. For an award of costs, including attorney’s fees, incurred in 

bringing this action; 

 F. For a judgment awarding to Plaintiff Glidewell prejudgment and 

postjudgment interest until the award is fully paid; 

 G. For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and 

equitable under the circumstances. 
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